

Transcript of the Testimony of

**LOUISIANA GAMING CONTROL BOARD
MEETING 9-18-2025**

September 18, 2025



P.O. Box 1554 • Hammond • Louisiana 70404
(Toll Free) 866.870.7233 • 985.542.8685 • (Fax) 985.419.0799
office@amersonwhite.com • www.amersonwhite.com

1 STATE OF LOUISIANA LOUISIANA GAMING CONTROL BOARD SEPTEMBER 18, 2025 MEETING This Louisiana Gaming Control Board Meeting was taken in by Belinda K. Amerson, a Certified Court Reporter in and for the State of Louisiana, at the LOUISIANA STATE CAPITOL, HOUSE COMMITTEE ROOM 5, BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA on the 18th day of September, 2025.	2 1 APPEARANCES: 2 3 CHAIRMAN CHRISTOPHER HEBERT 4 MS. LANDRY 5 MS. HERNANDEZ 6 MR. JACKSON 7 MS. LEWIS 8 MS. TRAYLOR 9 MR. POOLE 10 MR. SHOLES 11 MS. HAMILTON-ACKER 12 MS. BECNEL 13 MR. LANGLEY 14 JAROD CONIGLIO 15 MAJOR ALBRIGHT 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25
3 1 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 2 Good morning, everyone. Okay. Can 3 you hear me okay? All right. 4 Good morning. I would like to call 5 to order the meeting of the Louisiana 6 Gaming Control Board, Thursday, September 7 18, 2025. 8 Ms. Hernandez, would you please call 9 the roll? 10 MS. HERNANDEZ: 11 Chairman Hebert. 12 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 13 Here. 14 MS. HERNANDEZ: 15 Ms. Becnel. 16 MS. BECNEL: 17 Here. 18 MS. HERNANDEZ: 19 Mr. Jackson. 20 MR. JACKSON: 21 Here. 22 MS. HERNANDEZ: 23 Mr. Langley. 24 MR. LANGLEY: 25 Here.	4 1 MS. HERNANDEZ: 2 Ms. Lewis. 3 MS. LEWIS: 4 Here. 5 MS. HERNANDEZ: 6 Mr. Poole. 7 MR. POOLE: 8 Here. 9 MS. HERNANDEZ: 10 Ms. Hamilton-Acker. 11 MS. HAMILTON-ACKER: 12 Here. 13 MS. HERNANDEZ: 14 Mr. Sholes. 15 MR. SHOLES: 16 Hello. 17 MS. HERNANDEZ: 18 Ms. Traylor. 19 MS. TRAYLOR: 20 Here. 21 MS. HERNANDEZ: 22 Colonel Hodges. 23 MAJOR ALBRIGHT: 24 Major Albright for Colonel Hodges. 25 MS. HERNANDEZ:

5 1 Secretary Nelson. 2 MR. CONIGLIO: 3 Jarrod Coniglio here for Secretary 4 Nelson. 5 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 6 Okay. We have a quorum. And 7 Members, thank you for being here this 8 morning. 9 Ladies and gentlemen, this is our 10 public comment period. If anyone would 11 like to comment on any agenda item before 12 the Board today, now is the time to come 13 forward. 14 Seeing none, we will now move on to 15 Item III, the approval of the minutes. 16 Board Members, at this time, I would 17 ask for a motion to waive the reading and 18 approve the minutes of the August 21, 2025 19 board meeting. 20 MR. JACKSON: 21 So moved. 22 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 23 So moved by Mr. Jackson; seconded by 24 Mr. Poole. 25 Is there any discussion?	6 1 Any opposition? 2 Hearing none, that motion carries 3 and the minutes are approved. 4 Moving on to Item IV on our agenda, 5 our revenue reports. 6 Good morning, Ms. Jackson. 7 MS. JACKSON: 8 Good morning, Chairman Hebert and 9 Board Members. I'm Donna Jackson with the 10 Louisiana State Police, Gaming Audit 11 Section. 12 In August, the 15 operating 13 riverboats generated Adjusted Gross 14 Receipts of \$160,851,747. The state 15 collected fees totalling \$34,583,125. 16 Adjusted Gross Receipts for fiscal 17 year '25-'26 to date are approximately 18 \$312 million, an increase of \$26.5 million 19 or 9% from fiscal year '24-'25. 20 As of August 31, 2025, the state has 21 collected approximately \$67 million in 22 fees for fiscal year '25-'26. 23 Page 2 shows the riverboat revenue 24 broken down by regional market. The 25 overall increase from July was \$9.8
7 1 million or 6.5%. Compared to last August, 2 this month's revenues represent an 3 increase of \$13.6 million or 9.2%. As 4 information, the calendar this August was 5 favorable, with one additional full 6 weekend than last month, and one 7 additional Sunday than last August. 8 Next, is a summary of the August 9 2025 gaming activity for Caesars New 10 Orleans, found on page 3. Caesars 11 generated \$25,796,776 in gross gaming 12 revenue. These revenues represent an 13 increase from last month of \$4.5 million 14 or 21%, and an increase of \$6.9 million or 15 36.6% from the same month last year. 16 During August, the state received 17 \$5,520,548 in minimum daily payments. 18 To date, Adjusted Gross Receipts for 19 fiscal year '25-'26 are \$47 million, an 20 increase of \$10.5 million or 29% from 21 fiscal year '24-'25. As of August 31, 22 2025, the state collected \$11 million in 23 fees for fiscal year '25-'26. 24 Next, I will present the revenues 25 for Slots at the Racetracks. During	8 1 August, the four racetrack facilities 2 combined, generated Adjusted Gross 3 Receipts of \$28,144,801, an increase of 4 \$1.9 million or 7.2% from the previous 5 month and an increase of \$1.6 million or 6 6.2% when compared to the same month last 7 year. During August, the state collected 8 \$4.3 million in state fees. 9 To date, Adjusted Gross Receipts for 10 fiscal year '25-'26 are \$54.4 million, an 11 increase of \$2.8 million or 5.5% from 12 fiscal year '24-'25. As of August 31, 13 2025, the state has collected \$8.3 million 14 in fees for fiscal year '25-'26. 15 I will now move to the Video Gaming 16 information. 17 There are 12,343 video gaming 18 devices activated at 1,378 locations. Net 19 Device Revenue for August 2025 was 20 \$65,378,438, an increase of \$965,000 or 21 1.5% when compared to July, and an 22 increase of \$3.2 million or 5.2% when 23 compared to last August. Total Franchise 24 Fees for August were \$19.7 million. 25 Fiscal year to date, Net Device Revenue is

9 1 \$129.8 million, an increase of \$7 million 2 or 5.8% when compared to last fiscal year. 3 As of August 31, 2025, the state has 4 collected \$39 million in franchise fees 5 for fiscal year '25-'26. 6 Next, I will present the August 7 revenue for sportsbook. During August, 8 the retail sportbooks accepted \$19.6 9 million in sports wagers, resulting in net 10 proceeds of \$3.3 million and \$306,000 in 11 state taxes. The mobile sportsbooks 12 accepted \$251.8 million in sports wagers, 13 resulting in net proceeds of \$30.2 million 14 and \$6.5 million in taxes paid to the 15 state. 16 Finally, for Daily Fantasy Sports, 17 gross revenues for August were 18 approximately \$372,000, with net revenue 19 of \$41,000 and taxes of \$3,300. 20 Are there any questions? 21 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 22 Board Members, are there any 23 question for Ms. Jackson? 24 Okay, seeing none. 25 Thank you, Ms. Jackson. We	10 1 appreciate your report. 2 Moving on to Item V on our agenda, 3 Rulemaking. Today we have the 4 consideration of the institution of 5 rulemaking procedures for amendment of 6 Louisiana Administrative Code 42:III.2325 7 regarding Administrative Actions and 8 Penalty Schedule as well as Louisiana 9 Administrative Code 42:III.2723 for 10 Internal Controls and Slots. 11 Good morning. 12 ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL GITS: 13 Good morning, Chairman Hebert and 14 Board Members. I'm Assistant Attorney 15 General -- can y'all hear me? 16 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 17 Yes. 18 ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL GITS: 19 I'm Assistant Attorney General 20 Cathryn Gits here in the matter of the 21 rulemaking procedure for Item Number 5A, 22 which is an amendment to the Louisiana 23 Administrative Code, Title 42, Part 3, 24 Section 2325 - Administrative Actions and 25 Penalty Schedule and Section 2723 -
11 1 Internal Controls; Slots. 2 The proposed rule change is 3 necessary to comply with the newly enacted 4 federal law, Public Law 119-21. The rule 5 change will ensure that jackpot payout -- 6 payouts conform to federal reporting 7 requirements, including any future 8 inflation adjustment. Additionally, the 9 proposed rule is structured to 10 automatically comply with future federal 11 requirements, without the need for 12 subsequent Board action to maintain 13 compliance with any future federal 14 changes. 15 Rule 2325, Administrative Actions 16 and Penalty Schedule, provides in its 17 current posture that a violation involving 18 jackpot payout slips greater than \$1,200 19 can result in a base penalty of \$1,000, 20 with a proscriptive period of 12 months. 21 The proposed change would amend the 22 violation description to include jackpot 23 payout slips greater than the amount 24 required to file a W-2G. The base penalty 25 and proscriptive period will remain	12 1 unchanged. 2 Rule 2723, Internal Controls; Slots, 3 in its current posture requires 4 verification and witness by an additional 5 permitted gaming employee when the jackpot 6 is less than \$1,200. If the jackpot is 7 \$1,200 or greater, the additional 8 permitted gaming employee shall be an 9 employee from a department independent of 10 the department performing the payout. The 11 rule also requires if the jackpot is 12 \$1,200 or greater in value, certain 13 information shall be obtained by the slot 14 attendant prior to payout and for 15 preparation of a Form W-2G. 16 The proposed change would replace 17 the \$1,200 threshold amount with the 18 amount required for the filing of a W-2G 19 or similar federal tax withholding form. 20 The proposed change maintains the 21 requirement that an additional permitted 22 gaming employee shall be an employee from 23 a department independent of the department 24 performing the payout for payouts 25 requiring federal reporting. The

13 1 requirement to collect certain information 2 by the slot attendant prior to payout for 3 preparation of a Form W-2G will remain in 4 effect. 5 If the Board has no questions, a 6 motion to institute the rulemaking 7 procedures is needed. 8 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 9 Board Members, do we have any 10 questions for the Attorney General's 11 Office? 12 If not, I'll entertain a motion to 13 institute rulemaking procedures for this 14 agenda item. 15 MR. SHOLES: 16 So moved. 17 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 18 So moved by Judge Sholes; seconded 19 by Ms. Becnel. 20 Is there any discussion? 21 Any opposition? 22 Hearing none, that motion carries 23 and the rulemaking procedures are 24 instituted. 25 ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL GITS:	14 1 Thank you. 2 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 3 Thank you. 4 We will now move to Item VI on our 5 agenda, Video Gaming Issues. First up is 6 Item A, the consideration of the truck 7 stop application for Silver Fox Casino, 8 LLC, doing business as Silver Fox Casino. 9 Good morning. Please identify 10 yourselves for the record. 11 ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL SUMBLER: 12 Good morning, Chairman Hebert and 13 Board Members. I'm Assistant Attorney 14 General Steven Sumbler appearing in the 15 matter of the Original Application of 16 Silver Fox Casino, LLC, doing business as 17 Silver Fox for a Type 5 Video Draw Poker 18 Gaming License. 19 The truck stop facility is located 20 in St. Mary Parish. Landry's, LLP, doing 21 business as Landry's Auto Truck Stop 22 previously operated the truck stop 23 facility at this location. On March 12, 24 2021, the Applicant leased the property 25 and structures of the truck stop facility
15 1 from Landry's, LLP. On March 15, 2021, 2 the Applicant submitted an original 3 application for a Type 5 Video Draw Poker 4 Gaming License for this location. The 5 Applicant contracted with Professional 6 Gaming, LLC to operate the Video Draw 7 Poker Gaming Devices located at the truck 8 stop facility. The members of Silver Fox, 9 LLC are Richard Gutierrez, who is the 10 owner of 51% and Ryan Gutierrez who is the 11 owner of 49%. 12 Investigator Glen Verrett inspected 13 the truck stop facility and conducted 14 updated suitability investigations on the 15 associated persons. He is present this 16 morning to report his findings to the 17 Board. Following his presentation, the 18 Board will need a motion and vote to 19 approve or deny the Original Application 20 of Silver Fox Casino, LLC, doing business 21 as Silver Fox Casino for a Type 5 truck 22 stop license. 23 INVESTIGATOR VERRETT: 24 Good morning, Mr. Chairman and Board 25 Members. I'm Investigator Glenn Verrett	16 1 with the Gaming Enforcement Division of 2 State Police. 3 I conducted updated suitability 4 investigations on Richard Gutierrez and 5 Ryan Gutierrez. I did not find any 6 information that would preclude them from 7 continuing to participate in the video 8 gaming industry. 9 An on-site inspection was conducted, 10 and it was determined that the 11 establishment meets all criteria set forth 12 in video gaming law as a qualified truck 13 stop facility. The truck parking area can 14 accommodate 50 tractor-trailers. The 15 travel lanes are constructed of concrete 16 and meets the requirements for ingress and 17 egress. The Applicant has contracted with 18 a maintenance service for truck repairs. 19 The facility is equipped with a full 20 service laundry facility, private showers 21 for men and women, and has a convenience 22 store that sells trucker's supplies. It 23 also has three fuel storage tanks. 24 All required licenses and permits 25 were posted and valid at the time of

17 1 inspection. 2 The establishment consists of 6.664 3 contiguous acres. 4 The Applicant submitted a Video Draw 5 Poker License Application within 36 months 6 of the location being last-licensed as a 7 qualified truck stop facility, which was 8 held by Landry, LLP, doing business as 9 Landry's Auto Truck Stop; therefore, it is 10 not subject to the rule that it must be at 11 least one-mile distance from a school, 12 church, playground, synagogue, public 13 library, residence, or buildings on the 14 National Historic Registry. 15 I found no information that would 16 preclude the issuance of a Type 5 Video 17 Draw Poker Gaming License to Silver Fox 18 Casino, doing business as Silver Fox 19 Casino. 20 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 21 Okay. Thank you. 22 Board Members, do we have any 23 questions for the AG's office or State 24 Police? 25 If not, I will entertain a motion to	18 1 approve the truck stop application. 2 So moved by Ms. Lewis; seconded by 3 Ms. Traylor. 4 Is there any discussion? 5 Any opposition? 6 Hearing none, the application is 7 approved. 8 Thank you two. 9 INVESTIGATOR VERRETT: 10 Thank you. 11 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 12 The next item under Video Gaming 13 Issues is the consideration of the truck 14 stop application for CStore Properties2, 15 LLC, doing business as Wynners Club 16 Casino. 17 Good morning. 18 INVESTIGATOR LANDRY: 19 Good morning. 20 ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL GITS: 21 Good morning. 22 Good morning, Chairman Hebert and 23 Board Members. I'm Assistant Attorney 24 General Cathryn Gits appearing before you 25 in the matter of the Original Application
19 1 of CStore Properties2, LLC, doing business 2 as Wynners Club Casino for a Type 5 Video 3 Draw Poker Gaming License. 4 The truck stop is located in Pointe 5 Coupee Parish. C Wilcox, LLC doing 6 business as Wynners Club Casino previously 7 operated the truck stop facility at this 8 location. On March 17, 2025, the 9 Applicant purchased the immovable property 10 on which the truck stop facility is 11 located and the business, and the business 12 assets, from C Wilcox, LLC. The Applicant 13 has two members, Wimani1 Investments, LLC 14 with a 70% interest and A&K MO, LLC with a 15 30% interest. Wimani1 Investments, LLC is 16 comprised of five members and A&K MO, LLC 17 is comprised of two members. On May 27, 18 2025, the Applicant entered into a Video 19 Draw Poker Device Placement Agreement with 20 Wimani Gaming, LLC. 21 Investigator William Landry 22 inspected the truck stop facility and 23 conducted suitability investigations on 24 the associated people. He is present this 25 morning to report his findings to the	20 1 Board. Following his presentation, the 2 Board will need a motion and vote to 3 approve or deny the Original Application 4 of CStore Properties2, LLC, doing business 5 as Wynners Club Casino for a Type 5 truck 6 stop license. 7 INVESTIGATOR LANDRY: 8 Good morning, Chairman Hebert and 9 Board Members. I'm Investigator William 10 Landry with Louisiana State Police. 11 I conducted the suitability 12 investigations on Hugh Raetzsch, Elizabeth 13 Raetzsch, Wilson C. Raetzsch, Matthew O. 14 Raetzsch, Nicholas R. Raetzsch, Anna T. 15 Raetzsch, Ali Momenzadeh, and Kelli B. 16 Momenzadeh. I did not find any 17 information that would preclude them from 18 participating in the video gaming 19 industry. 20 An on-site inspection was conducted 21 and it was determined that the 22 establishment met all the criteria set 23 forth in the video gaming law as a 24 qualified truck stop facility. The 25 trucking park -- truck parking area is

21 1 constructed of asphalt and can accommodate 2 fifty tractor-trailers. Additionally, the 3 travel lanes are constructed of asphalt 4 and allows for ingress and egress. The 5 Applicant has an agreement with Hoffman's 6 Truck Service and -- to handle any on-site 7 repairs. There is a full service laundry, 8 trucker's television lounge, trucker's 9 supplies, and private showers for men and 10 women. There are permanent fuel storage 11 facilities. 12 All required licenses and permits 13 were posted and valid at the time of 14 inspections. The establishment consists 15 of 6.61 contiguous acres. The Applicant 16 submitted a Video Draw Poker License 17 Application within the 36 months of the 18 location being last-licensed as qualified 19 truck stop facility, which was held by C 20 Wilcox, LLC, doing business as Wynners 21 Club Casino; therefore, it is not subject 22 to the rule that it must be at least 23 one-mile distance from a school, church, 24 playground, synagogue, public library, 25 residence, buildings on the National	22 1 Historic Registry. 2 I found no information that would 3 preclude the issuance of a Type 5 Video 4 Draw Poker Gaming License for CStore 5 Properties2, LLC, doing business as 6 Wynners Club Casino. 7 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 8 Okay. Thank you. 9 Board Members, do we have any 10 questions for State Police or the Attorney 11 General's Office in this matter? 12 If not, I'll entertain a motion to 13 approve the truck stop application. 14 So moved by Ms. Hamilton-Acker, and 15 seconded by Mr. Langley. 16 Is there any discussion? 17 Any opposition? 18 Hearing none, that application is 19 approved. Thank you. 20 INVESTIGATOR LANDRY: 21 Thank you. 22 ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL GITS: 23 Thank you. 24 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 25 The final item under Video Gaming
23 1 Issues is the consideration of the truck 2 stop application for L.M. Daigle Oil 3 Company, Incorporated, doing business as 4 Lucky Delta Casino. 5 Good morning. 6 ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL JACKSON: 7 Good morning. 8 INVESTIGATOR VERRETT: 9 Good morning. 10 ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL JACKSON: 11 Good morning, Chairman Hebert and 12 Board Members. I am Assistant Attorney 13 General Quintele Jackson and to my right 14 is Investigator Glenn Verrett who is with 15 Louisiana State Police, Gaming Enforcement 16 Division. And we're appearing before you 17 this morning in the matter of the Original 18 Application of L.M. Daigle Oil Company, 19 Inc., doing business as Lucky Delta Casino 20 for a top 5 -- Type 5 Video Draw Poker 21 Gaming License. 22 Okay. Now, this truck stop facility 23 is located in Calcasieu Parish, and the 24 Applicant previously operated a truck stop 25 at this location; however, Hurricane Laura	24 1 significantly destroyed the facility and 2 the video gaming license was subsequently 3 surrendered during the rebuilding process. 4 Okay. On January 14th of this year, the 5 Applicant submitted an Original 6 Application for this renovated location. 7 Fleur de Lis Truckstops, LLC is the sole 8 member of the Applicant. Mr. John R. 9 Gottardi and Anthony J. Cashiola both hold 10 a 50% membership interest in the Applicant 11 -- I'm sorry, Fleur del Lis, sorry. So 12 this Applicant will operate the Video Draw 13 Poker Devices at this location through its 14 Type 6 Device Owner license. 15 Investigator Verrett inspected the 16 property and conducted updated criminal as 17 well as background checks of the 18 associated persons. He will report his 19 findings to the Board momentarily; 20 however, following his presentation, the 21 Board will need a motion and a vote to 22 either approve or deny the application by 23 L.M. Daigle Oil Company, Inc., doing 24 business as Lucky Delta Casino. 25 INVESTIGATOR VERRETT:

25 1 Good morning, Mr. Chairman and Board 2 Members. Again, this is Investigator 3 Glenn Verrett with the Gaming Enforcement 4 Division, State Police. 5 I conducted updated criminal 6 background checks of John R. Gottardi and 7 his wife, Lorraine, Anthony Cashiola and 8 his wife Kym, and manager Jerry S. 9 Gottardi. I did not find any information 10 that would preclude them from continuing 11 to participate in the video gaming 12 industry. 13 An on-site inspection was conducted, 14 and it was determined that the 15 establishment meets all of the criteria of 16 a qualified truck stop facility as set 17 forth in Video Gaming Law. The trucker's 18 parking area is constructed of asphalt, 19 mainly concrete, accompanying fifty 20 tractor-trailers. The travel lanes are 21 constructed of concrete and meet the 22 requirements for ingress and egress. 23 There is a full service laundry facility, 24 private showers for men and women, and a 25 travel store for trucker's supplies. The	26 1 truck stop has an owner-operated 2 restaurant on-site, operating 24 hours a 3 day, 7 days a week. It has permanent 4 storage facilities for fuel with three 5 storage tanks. The Applicant has a 6 service and sale agreement with The Delta 7 Fuel Stop to provide on-site repair 8 services. 9 All required licenses and permits 10 were posted and valid at the time of 11 inspection. The establishment consists of 12 7.57 contiguous acres. The Applicant 13 submitted a Video Draw Poker License 14 Application within 36 months of the 15 location being last-licensed as a 16 qualified truck stop facility; therefore, 17 it is not subject to the rule that it must 18 be at least one-mile distance from a 19 school, church, playground, synagogue, 20 public library, residence, and buildings 21 on the National Historic Registry. 22 I found no information that would 23 preclude the issuance of the Type 5 Video 24 Draw Poker Gaming License to the to L.M. 25 Daigle Oil Company, Incorporated, doing
27 1 business as Lucky Delta Casino. 2 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 3 Thank you. 4 Board Members, are there any 5 questions for State Police or the Attorney 6 General's office in this matter? 7 If not, I will entertain a motion to 8 approve this truck stop application. 9 So moved by Ms. Becnel, and seconded 10 by Mr. Poole. 11 Is there any discussion? 12 Any opposition? 13 Hearing none, the application is 14 approved. Thank you. 15 INVESTIGATOR VERRETT: 16 Thank you, sir. 17 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 18 We will now move on to Item VII, 19 Sports Wagering Issues. Item A is the 20 consideration of the approval of Problem 21 Gambling Program updates for Betfair 22 Interactive US, LLC, doing business as 23 FanDuel Sportsbook. 24 Good morning and please identify 25 yourselves for the record.	28 1 ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL McCoy: 2 Good morning, Chairman Hebert and 3 Board Members. I'm Assistant Attorney 4 General Sharon McCoy. 5 MS. FRANK: 6 Good morning, everyone. I am Allie 7 Frank. I am the Senior Compliance Manager 8 overseeing Responsible Gaming for FanDuel. 9 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 10 You may proceed. 11 ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL McCOY: 12 In 2001, the Louisiana Legislature 13 passed the Uniform Compulsive Gaming Act. 14 Pursuant to that enactment, the Louisiana 15 Gaming Control Board adopted Rules 301 16 through 304 to aid in the development of a 17 state-wide Uniform Compulsive Gaming 18 Program. The Louisiana Revised Statute 19 27:27.1A, provides, in part, that it is -- 20 it is imperative for the health, safety, 21 and welfare of the citizens of the state 22 of Louisiana, that all gaming licensees 23 develop and implement Comprehensive 24 Compulsive and Problem Gaming Programs to 25 be approved by the Board. Amendments to

29 1 previously approved programs must be 2 submitted to the Board for prior approval 3 to implementation. 4 Betfair Interactive US, LLC, doing 5 business as FanDuel Sportsbook, who holds 6 a sports wagering platform provided 7 permit, has requested the Board's approval 8 to make up dates to their program. Our 9 office, the Louisiana State Police, Gaming 10 Enforcement Division and the Louisiana 11 Association on Compulsive Gambling have 12 reviewed the proposed updates. 13 After reviewing the updates, 14 recommendations were submitted to the 15 Permittee. The Permittee updated the 16 program to include those recommendations 17 and the program continues to comply with 18 all applicable laws and requirements. If 19 it is the Board's pleasure to approve 20 these changes, a Resolution has been 21 prepared for the Board's adoption and the 22 Chairman's signature. 23 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 24 Okay. Thank you. 25 Ms. Frank, do you have any anything	30 1 that you want to add to that? 2 MS. FRANK: 3 It's just an honor to be here, and 4 I'm happy to answer any questions anyone 5 might have. 6 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 7 Board Members, do you have any 8 questions for the Attorney General's 9 office or for Ms. Frank? 10 Okay. Seeing none. We will 11 entertain a motion to adopt the 12 resolution. 13 So moved by Mr. Langley; seconded by 14 Mr. Jackson. 15 Would you please read the resolution 16 into the record, Ms. Landry? 17 MS. LANDRY: 18 On the 18th day of September, 2025, 19 the Louisiana Gaming Control Board did, in 20 a duly noticed public meeting, consider 21 the issue of Betfair Interactive US, LLC, 22 doing business as FanDuel Sportsbook's 23 request for approval of updates to its 24 problem gambling program pursuant to the 25 Louisiana Revised Statute 27:27.1 and,
31 1 upon motion duly made and seconded, the 2 Board adopted the following Resolution: 3 Be it resolved that Betfair 4 Interactive US, LLC, doing business as 5 FanDuel Sportsbook's problem gambling 6 program be and is hereby approved. 7 Thus done and signed in Baton Rouge, 8 Louisiana this 18th day of September, 9 2025. 10 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 11 And Ms. Hernandez, would you please 12 call the roll? 13 MS. HERNANDEZ: 14 Mr. Becnel. 15 MR. BECNEL: 16 Yes. 17 MS. HERNANDEZ: 18 Mr. Jackson. 19 MR. JACKSON: 20 Yes. 21 MS. HERNANDEZ: 22 Mr. Langley. 23 MR. LANGLEY: 24 Yes. 25 MS. HERNANDEZ:	32 1 Mr. Poole. 2 MR. POOLE: 3 Yes. 4 MS. HERNANDEZ: 5 Ms. Lewis. 6 MS. LEWIS: 7 Yes. 8 MS. HERNANDEZ: 9 Ms. Hamilton-Acker. 10 MS. HAMILTON-ACKER: 11 Yes. 12 MS. HERNANDEZ: 13 Mr. Sholes. 14 MR. SHOLES: 15 Yes. 16 MS. HERNANDEZ: 17 Ms. Traylor. 18 MS. TRAYLOR: 19 Yes. 20 MS. HERNANDEZ: 21 Chairman Hebert. 22 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 23 Yes. 24 That motion carries. The Resolution 25 is adopted, and the Problem Gambling

33 1 Program is approved. 2 MS. FRANK: 3 Thank you. 4 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 5 Thank you and safe travels home. 6 Okay. Board Members, moving on to 7 Item VIII on our agenda, the consideration 8 of proposed settlements. 9 First up is Item A, the 10 consideration of proposed settlement for 11 Ben Nelson Golf and Utility Vehicles, LLC, 12 doing business as Ben Nelson Golf and 13 Outdoor. 14 Good morning. 15 ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL McCOY: 16 Good morning, again, Chairman Hebert 17 and fellow Board Members. I'm Assistant 18 Attorney General Sharon McCoy here in the 19 matter of the settlement of Ben Nelson 20 Golf and Utility Vehicles, doing business 21 as Ben Nelson Golf and Outdoor, which 22 holds a Non-Gaming Supplier Permit. 23 On May 30, 2024, the Division 24 received notification that the ownership 25 structure of Ben Nelson Golf and Utility	34 1 Vehicles, LLC had changed. 2 On March 30, 2020, the Permittee 3 submitted a Non-Gaming Supplier Permit 4 Application to the Division, which showed 5 that Benjamin F. Nelson held a 51% 6 interest in the Permittee and Benjamin F. 7 Nelson, III, the managing member, held a 8 49% interest in the Permittee. 9 On December 8, 2023, KGT Operating, 10 LLC, also known as KGT Operating, became 11 the sole member of the Permittee through a 12 membership interest purchase agreement and 13 assignment of membership interest. The 14 Permittee failed to obtain prior written 15 approval from the Board and the Division 16 for the transfer of interest and failed to 17 timely notify the Board and the Division 18 of the transfer. 19 In lieu of adjudicating this matter, 20 the partner and counsel of the Permittee 21 reached out to the Division seeking a 22 settlement. This settlement addresses the 23 Permittee's failure to timely notify the 24 Division of this structure change and the 25 Permittee's failure to timely notify the
35 1 Division of the transfer within 15 days. 2 The Permittee -- the parties agree 3 to settle this matter for \$500. And this 4 amount reflects the civil penalty that is 5 well established for violations of this 6 magnitude. The Hearing Officer signed the 7 settlement and it is now before the Board 8 for final approval. 9 I would be happy to answer any 10 questions that you may have at this time. 11 THE COURT: 12 Board Members, are there any 13 questions? 14 If not, I'll entertain a motion to 15 approve the settlement. 16 So moved by Ms. Lewis, and seconded 17 by Ms. Traylor. 18 All in favor say aye. 19 (All said aye). 20 Is there any opposition? 21 Hearing none, the motion carries and 22 that settlement is approved. 23 ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL McCOY: 24 Thank you. 25 CHAIRMAN HEBERT:	36 1 Thank you. 2 Next, under proposed settlements is 3 Item B, consideration of the proposed 4 settlement for MLMWBM, LLC, doing business 5 as The Pour House Saloon. 6 Good morning. 7 ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL EVANS: 8 Good morning, Chairman Hebert and 9 Board Members. I am Assistant Attorney 10 General Virginia Evans, here in the matter 11 of the settlement of MLMWBM, LLC, doing 12 business as The Pour House Saloon, which 13 holds a Type 1 Video Draw Poker Gaming 14 License. 15 This settlement addresses the 16 failure of the Licensee to timely renew 17 it's ATC permit and occupational permit 18 while operating Video Draw Poker devices 19 in its establishment. 20 Specifically, the Licensee failed to 21 maintain a valid ATC permit from February 22 28, 2025 to May 23, 2025, and failed to 23 maintain a valid occupational permit from 24 December 31, 2024 to May 9, 2025 which 25 gave rise to violations of gaming law.

37 1 This settlement includes a civil 2 penalty of \$3000 and has been approved by 3 the Hearing Officer. The settlement is 4 now before the Board for final approval. 5 I would be happy to answer any 6 questions you may have at this time. 7 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 8 Board Members, are there any 9 questions? 10 If not, I will entertain a motion to 11 approve the settlement. 12 So moved by Ms. Becnel; seconded by 13 Judge Sholes. 14 All in favor say aye. 15 (All said aye). 16 Is there any opposition? 17 Hearing none, the motion carries and 18 the settlement is approved. 19 ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL EVANS: 20 Thank you. 21 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 22 Thank you. 23 Board Members, our final agenda item 24 is the consideration of the appeal of 25 Tiffany Jackson, Case Number P040065896.	38 1 Good morning, and would you please 2 both identify yourselves for the record. 3 ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL McCOY: 4 Good morning, again, Chairman Hebert 5 and fellow Board Members. I'm Assistant 6 Attorney General Sharon McCoy appearing on 7 behalf of the Division in the appeal 8 matter regarding Ms. Tiffany Jackson. 9 MS. JACKSON: 10 Good morning. I'm the Permittee, 11 Tiffany Jackson. 12 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 13 Okay, before we begin ladies, I 14 would like to remind you that this Board 15 is operating in its appellate capacity. 16 And what that means is that this Board's 17 decision will be based on the record of 18 the Administrative Hearing and arguments 19 made today, but no new evidence can be 20 considered at this Board Meeting. 21 Ms. Jackson, as this is your appeal, 22 you will begin. 23 MS. JACKSON: 24 I wrote a note -- I mean I wrote a 25 letter stating of the problems and
39 1 situations that I was having -- having at 2 the time of the situation that end up 3 being the reasoning and calling in and it 4 taking that I had went to jail. And it's 5 still an on-going case, so -- 6 ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL McCOY: 7 Okay. Chairman Hebert, I 8 respectfully would like to object. That's 9 new evidence that the Permittee is 10 attempting to bring in at this time. 11 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 12 We can't accept any new evidence or 13 evidence or anything that has happened 14 since the Hearing Office has -- Hearing 15 Officers made a rule. Okay? 16 MS. JACKSON: 17 Okay. 18 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 19 So, is there anything else that you 20 would like for the Board to know? 21 MS. JACKSON: 22 I -- in my letter, I stated that I 23 had went through some programs and got 24 help since -- 25 ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL McCOY:	40 1 Excuse me, Chairman Hebert, I 2 respectfully object. The Permittee is 3 attempting to bring in new test -- 4 testimony. 5 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 6 Yes, ma'am. 7 And Ms. Jackson, know that the Board 8 is in receipt of the letter -- 9 MS. JACKSON: 10 Yes, sir. 11 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 12 -- that you did -- that you sent. 13 Okay. 14 MS. JACKSON: 15 Yes, sir. I just was -- I was 16 pretty much asking for a chance. That's 17 it. 18 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 19 Okay. Ms. McCoy. 20 ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL McCOY: 21 This matter comes before the Board 22 to determine whether the Hearing Officer's 23 decision to revoke Ms. Jackson's permit 24 was correct based on the testimonial 25 evidence presented at the Administrative

41 1 Hearing. 2 The Division contends that Hearing 3 Officer correctly determined that the 4 Permittee was unsuitable to hold a Non-Key 5 Gaming Employee Permit and correctly 6 revoked her permit. 7 Louisiana Revised Statute 27:28.B2 8 establishes that a person is unsuitable if 9 they have a pending charge for any offense 10 which meets the criteria of Louisiana 11 Revised Statute 27:28.B1. One of those 12 criteria includes offenses which are 13 punishable by imprisonment of more than 14 one year. The testimonial evidence 15 presented at the hearing showed that the 16 Kenner Police Department arrested and 17 charged the Permittee with eight counts of 18 cruelty to a juvenile. Cruelty to a 19 juvenile is a felony punishable by up to 20 ten years in prison; therefore, the 21 Permittee's eight pending charges of 22 cruelty to a juvenile meet the criteria of 23 Louisiana Revised Statute 27:28.B1A, which 24 disqualifies a person for any offense 25 punishable -- punishable by imprisonment	42 1 for more than one year. 2 Accordingly, the Hearing Officer 3 correctly determined that the Permittee 4 was statutorily disqualified from holding 5 a gaming permit based on those provisions 6 alone. 7 Additionally, as a general matter, 8 Louisiana Revised Statute 27:28.A, grants 9 the Board significant discretion to 10 determine suitability based on whether a 11 person is of good character, honesty and 12 integrity, the purpose of which is to 13 ensure that the Permittee do not pose a 14 threat to the public interest of this 15 state or to the effect of regulation and 16 control of gaming. 17 Louisiana Revised Statute 27:28.D, 18 requires a Permittee to demonstrate he or 19 she is suitable and states in part, 20 evidence of or relating to an arrest, 21 summons, charge, or indictment may be 22 considered by the Board or the Division. 23 The Permittee's actions clearly fall 24 within the category of unsuitable conduct. 25 At the hearing, the Division's witness and
43 1 the Arresting Officer, Detective Ismael 2 Cornejo, who observed the Permittee's home 3 testified and described the home to be in 4 deplorable condition. There was minimal 5 furniture, sewage backups, a lack of food 6 in the residence. The first floor 7 restroom had dried up toilet paper on the 8 ground and a brown substance in the sink 9 which appeared to be dried maggots. The 10 residence did not have central air. In 11 the boys bedroom there was a bunkbed frame 12 but no mattress and an unknown substance 13 on the wall and no ceiling or floor fan. 14 And in the girl's bedroom there was a 15 bunkbed with two mattresses which were 16 black and brown in color and ripped open 17 with no bed sheets or pillows; however, in 18 the Permittee's bedroom, Detective Cornejo 19 observed that the room had bedsheets, had 20 pillows, had a comforter, and a window 21 unit with a fan blowing, unlike the 22 children's bedroom. 23 This strongly supports the 24 Division's argument that the Hearing 25 Officer's decision should be affirmed as	44 1 the Permittee's actions clearly 2 demonstrate a prioritization of her own 3 desires over the well-being of her 4 children. Detective Cornejo also 5 testified that the hearing that he and 6 another officer observed a juvenile victim 7 with markings on his back that were 8 scabbed indicating that they were recent. 9 Detective Cornejo further stated that 10 after he interviewed the Permittee, she 11 admitted to striking the juvenile victim 12 with a belt, but suggested that the 13 juvenile victim's movements may explain 14 why he got struck on front and in the 15 back. 16 This conduct is in direct contention 17 with the high moral and ethical standards 18 required to hold a gaming permit. The 19 active battery combined with the disregard 20 for the well-being of children magnifies 21 the Division's position that Ms. Jackson 22 is not a suitable person to hold a gaming 23 permit. Ms. Jackson did not contradict 24 any of the testimony provided by Detective 25 Corne- -- Cornejo, or Investigator Sam, or

45 1 evidence presented at the hearing. 2 The Permittee has the sole burden to 3 prove her suitability by clear and 4 convincing evidence and she failed to do 5 so. The Hearing Officer considered the 6 weight of the testimony and correctly 7 found that Ms. Jackson's actions pose a 8 threat to the public interest of Louisiana 9 and the effective regulation and control 10 of gaming. 11 Furthermore, regardless of the 12 Permittee's testimony or attempted 13 justifications for her tes -- for her 14 treatment of her children, the eight 15 pending cruelty to juvenile charges and 16 simple battery charge, disqualifies her 17 and meaning that she is legally not 18 eligible to hold a gaming permit. 19 Therefore, for those reasons that this -- 20 the Division respectfully requests that 21 this honorable Board affirm the decision 22 of the Hearing Officer, revoking Ms. 23 Jackson's Non-Key Gaming Employee Permit 24 and finding her unsuitable to participate 25 in the gaming industry.	46 1 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 2 Board Members, do we have any -- any 3 questions for either Ms. Jackson or Ms. 4 McCoy? 5 Okay. At this time, I will 6 entertain a motion to either affirm the 7 Hearing Officer's decision revoking Ms. 8 Jackson's Non-Key Gaming Employee Permit 9 and finding her unsuitable to participate 10 in Louisiana's gaming industry or to 11 reverse the Hearing Officer's decision. 12 MR. JACKSON: 13 I'll make a motion that we uphold -- 14 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 15 Just a second, Mr. Jackson. 16 Okay. 17 MR. JACKSON: 18 Oh, I'm sorry. I'll make a motion 19 that we uphold the Hearing Officer's 20 decision. 21 MR. POOLE: 22 I'll second that motion. 23 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 24 Okay. It's moved by Mr. Jackson; 25 seconded by Mr. Poole that the Board
47 1 affirms the Hearing Officer's decision. 2 Ms. Hernandez, would you please take 3 a roll call, please? 4 MS. HERNANDEZ: 5 Ms. Becnel. 6 MS. BECNEL: 7 Yes. 8 MS. HERNANDEZ: 9 Mr. Jackson. 10 MR. JACKSON: 11 Yes. 12 MS. HERNANDEZ: 13 Mr. Langley. 14 MR. LANGLEY: 15 Yes. 16 MS. HERNANDEZ: 17 Ms. Lewis. 18 MS. LEWIS: 19 Yes. 20 MS. HERNANDEZ: 21 Mr. Poole. 22 MR. POOLE: 23 Yes. 24 MS. HERNANDEZ: 25 Ms. Hamilton-Acker.	48 1 MS. HAMILTON-ACKER: 2 Yes. 3 MS. HERNANDEZ: 4 Mr. Sholes. 5 MR. SHOLES: 6 Yes. 7 MS. HERNANDEZ: 8 Ms. Traylor. 9 MS. TRAYLOR: 10 Yes. 11 MS. HERNANDEZ: 12 Chairman Hebert. 13 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 14 Yes. 15 That motion carries, and the 16 decision of the Hearing Officer is 17 affirmed. 18 Thank you. 19 ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL McCOY: 20 Thank you. 21 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 22 Okay. Board Members, before we 23 adjourn today's meeting, I would like to 24 take a moment of personal privilege to 25 recognize a valued member of our team.

49 1 Ms. Jasmine Dunklin is in the audience. 2 Ms. Jasmine, would you please stand? 3 I'm going to embarrass you a little bit. 4 Jasmine has served as the docket 5 clerk for the Board since June of 2023 and 6 unfortunately she will be departing in 7 early October as she relocates with her 8 family. Jasmine has been an outstanding 9 employee, always professional, always 10 willing to help, and always carrying 11 herself with a very positive attitude. 12 She's balanced her full-time 13 responsibilities as docket clerk for the 14 Board while also pursuing her college 15 studies and her hard work and dedication 16 have not gone unnoticed. 17 Jasmine, we thank you for your 18 service and we will truly miss you. 19 At the same time, I am pleased to 20 welcome Jasmine's successor, sitting next 21 to her, Ms. Shanaquoa Wright. Shanaquoa 22 brings experience from both city parish 23 and state government and she is already in 24 training with Jasmine. And I'm confident 25 that she will be a strong addition to our	50 1 Gaming Control Board team. 2 Board Members and attendees, please 3 join me in expressing our gratitude to 4 Jasmine and extending a warm welcome to 5 Shanaquoa as she begins her service on the 6 Board. 7 And finally, I would also be remised 8 if I -- I did not acknowledge the 9 retirement of the General Manager for 10 L'Auberge Baton Rouge, Ms. Kim Ginn. Kim, 11 who is not with us today, has been a 12 constant professional. Those of us who 13 have had a chance to work with her, either 14 in the capacity in here at the Board, or 15 at the Attorney General's Office, or State 16 Police, know that she has been a 17 hard-working professional and we wish her 18 the very best in her retirement as well. 19 And with that, Board Members, I 20 would ask for a motion to adjourn. 21 MR. JACKSON: 22 So moved. 23 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 24 Moved by Mr. Jackson. 25 MS. JACKSON:
51 1 Second. 2 CHAIRMAN HEBERT: 3 Seconded by Ms. Becnel. 4 And we are adjourned. 5 Everyone have a great day. 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25	52 1 REPORTER'S PAGE 2 3 4 I, BELINDA K. AMERSON, Certified Court 5 Reporter, in and for the State of Louisiana, the 6 officer, as defined in Rule 28 of the Federal 7 Rules of Civil Procedure and/or Article 1434 (B) 8 of the Louisiana Code of Civil Procedure, before 9 whom this sworn testimony was taken, do hereby 10 state on the record: 11 That due to the interaction in the 12 spontaneous discourse of this proceeding, dashes 13 (--) have been used to indicate pauses, changes 14 in thought, and/or talkovers; that same is the 15 proper method for a Court Reporter's 16 transcription of a proceeding, and that dashes 17 (--) do not indicate that words or phrases have 18 been left out of this transcript; also, that any 19 words and/or names which could not be verified 20 through reference material have been denoted with 21 the phrase "(phonetically spelled)." 22 23 24 BELINDA K. AMERSON, CCR 25 CERTIFIED COURT REPORTER

1 REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE

2 This certificate is valid only for a
3 transcript accompanied by my original signature
4 and original required seal on this page.

5 I, BELINDA K. AMERSON, Certified Court
6 Reporter, in and for the State of Louisiana, as
7 the officer before whom this testimony was taken,
8 do hereby certify that this hearing was reported
9 by me in the stenotype reporting method, was
10 prepared and transcribed by me or under my
11 personal direction and supervision, and is a true
12 and correct transcript to the best of my ability
13 and understanding;

14 That the transcript has been prepared in
15 compliance with transcript format guidelines
16 required by statute or by rules of the board;

17 That I have acted in compliance with the
18 prohibition on contractual relationships, as
19 defined by Louisiana Code of Civil Procedure
20 Article 1434 and in rules and advisory opinions
21 of the board;

22 That I am not related to counsel or the
23 parties herein, nor am I otherwise interested in
24 the outcome of this matter.

25

BELINDA K. AMERSON, CCR
CERTIFIED COURT REPORTER

A	11:8	52:14,19	35:15	29:11	24:17 25:6	15:17,18	27:22 29:5
A&K 19:14	Administr...	Anna 20:14	37:11	ATC 36:17	backups	15:24	30:22 31:4
19:16	10:6,7,9	answer 30:4	approved	36:21	43:5	17:22	33:12,20
ability 53:7	10:23,24	35:9 37:5	6:3 18:7	attempted	balanced	18:23 20:1	36:4,12
accept 39:12	11:15	Anthony	22:19	45:12	49:12	20:2,9	
accepted 9:8	38:18	24:9 25:7	27:14	attempting	base 11:19	22:9 23:12	C
9:12	40:25	appeal 37:24	28:25 29:1	39:10 40:3	11:24	24:19,21	C 19:5,12
accommod...	admitted	38:7,21	31:6 33:1	attendant	based 38:17	25:1 27:4	20:13
16:14 21:1	44:11	APPEAR...	35:22 37:2	12:14 13:2	40:24 42:5	28:3,15,25	21:19
accompani...	adopt 30:11	2:1	37:18	attendees	42:10	29:2 30:7	Caesars 7:9
53:2	adopted	appeared	approxima...	50:2	Baton 1:13	30:19 31:2	7:10
accompan...	28:15 31:2	43:9	6:17,21	attitude	31:7 50:10	33:6,17	Calcasieu
25:19	32:25	appearing	9:18	49:11	battery	34:15,17	23:23
acknowled...	adoption	14:14	area 16:13	Attorney	44:19	35:7,12	calender 7:4
50:8	29:21	18:24	20:25	10:12,14	45:16	36:9 37:4	call 3:4,8
acres 17:3	advisory	23:16 38:6	25:18	10:18,19	Becnel 2:12	37:8,23	31:12 47:3
21:15	53:12	appellate	argument	13:10,25	3:15,16	38:5,14,20	calling 39:3
26:12	affirm 45:21	38:15	43:24	14:11,13	13:19 27:9	39:20 40:7	capacity
Act 28:13	46:6	applicable	arguments	18:20,23	31:14,15	40:21 42:9	38:15
acted 53:10	affirmed	29:18	38:18	22:10,22	37:12 47:5	42:22	50:14
action 11:12	43:25	Applicant	arrest 42:20	23:6,10,12	47:6 51:3	45:21 46:2	CAPITOL
actions 10:7	48:17	14:24 15:2	arrested	27:5 28:1	bed 43:17	46:25	1:12
10:24	affirms 47:1	15:5 16:17	41:16	28:3,11	bedroom	48:22 49:5	carries 6:2
11:15	AG's 17:23	17:4 19:9	Arresting	30:8 33:15	43:11,14	49:14 50:1	13:22
42:23 44:1	agenda 5:11	19:12,18	43:1	33:18	43:18,22	50:2,6,14	32:24
45:7	6:4 10:2	21:5,15	Article 52:7	35:23 36:7	bedsheets	50:19 53:9	35:21
activated	13:14 14:5	23:24 24:5	53:12	36:9 37:19	43:19	53:12	37:17
8:18	33:7 37:23	24:8,10,12	asking 40:16	38:3,6	begins 50:5	Board's 29:7	48:15
active 44:19	agree 35:2	26:5,12	asphalt 21:1	39:6,25	behalf 38:7	29:19,21	carrying
activity 7:9	agreement	application	21:3 25:18	40:20	Belinda 1:10	38:16	49:10
add 30:1	19:19 21:5	14:7,15	assets 19:12	48:19	52:4,24	boys 43:11	case 37:25
addition	26:6 34:12	15:3,19	assignment	50:15	53:3,24	bring 39:10	39:5
49:25	aid 28:16	17:5 18:1	34:13	audience	belt 44:12	40:3	Cashiola
additional	air 43:10	18:6,14,25	Assistant	49:1	Ben 33:11,12	brings 49:22	24:9 25:7
7:5,7 12:4	Albright	20:3 21:17	10:12,14	Audit 6:10	33:19,21	broken 6:24	Casino 14:7
12:7,21	2:15 4:23	22:13,18	10:18,19	August 5:18	33:25	brown 43:8	14:8,16
Additionally	4:24	23:2,18	13:25	6:12,20	Benjamin	43:16	15:20,21
11:8 21:2	Ali 20:15	24:6,22	14:11,13	7:1,4,7,8	34:5,6	buildings	17:18,19
42:7	Allie 28:6	26:14 27:8	18:20,23	7:16,21	best 50:18	17:13	18:16 19:2
addresses	allows 21:4	27:13 34:4	22:22 23:6	8:1,7,12	53:7	21:25	19:6 20:5
34:22	amend 11:21	appreciate	23:10,12	8:19,23,24	Betfair	26:20	21:21 22:6
36:15	amendment	10:1	28:1,3,11	9:3,6,7,17	27:21 29:4	bunkbed	23:4,19
adjourn	10:5,22	approval	33:15,17	Auto 14:21	30:21 31:3	43:11,15	24:24 27:1
48:23	Amendme...	5:15 27:20	35:23 36:7	17:9	bit 49:3	burden 45:2	category
50:20	28:25	29:2,7	36:9 37:19	automatic...	black 43:16	business	42:24
adjourned	Amerson	30:23	38:3,5	11:10	blowing	14:8,16,21	Cathryn
51:4	1:10 52:4	34:15 35:8	39:6,25	aye 35:18,19	43:21	15:20 17:8	10:20
adjudicating	52:24 53:3	37:4	40:20	37:14,15	board 1:2,9	17:18	18:24
34:19	53:24	approve	48:19	B	3:6 5:12	18:15 19:1	CCR 52:24
Adjusted	amount	5:18 15:19	associated	5:16,19	6:9 9:22	19:6,11,11	53:24
6:13,16	11:23	18:1 20:3	15:15	B 20:15 36:3	10:14	20:4 21:20	ceiling 43:13
7:18 8:2,9	12:17,18	22:13	19:24	52:7	11:12 13:5	22:5 23:3	central
adjustment	35:4	24:22 27:8	24:18	back 44:7,15	13:9 14:13	23:19	43:10
	and/or 52:7	29:19	Association	background		24:24 27:1	certain

12:12 13:1	42:11	comment	38:20	Coupee 19:5	53:11	42:9	36:13,18
certificate	charge 41:9	5:10,11	42:22 45:5	Court 1:11	del 24:11	discussion	dried 43:7,9
53:1,2	42:21	COMMIT...	consists 17:2	35:11 52:4	Delta 23:4	5:25 13:20	due 52:11
Certified	45:16	1:12	21:14	52:15,25	23:19	18:4 22:16	duly 30:20
1:10 52:4	charged	Company	26:11	53:3,25	24:24 26:6	27:11	31:1
52:25 53:3	41:17	23:3,18	constant	criminal	27:1	disqualified	Dunklin
53:25	charges	24:23	50:12	24:16 25:5	demonstrate	42:4	49:1
certify 53:5	41:21	26:25	constructed	criteria	42:18 44:2	disqualifies	
Chairman	45:15	compared	16:15 21:1	16:11	denoted	41:24	<u>E</u>
2:3 3:1,11	checks 24:17	7:1 8:6,21	21:3 25:18	20:22	52:20	45:16	early 49:7
3:12 5:5	25:6	8:23 9:2	25:21	25:15	deny 15:19	disregard	effect 13:4
5:22 6:8	children	compliance	contends	41:10,12	20:3 24:22	44:19	42:15
9:21 10:13	44:4,20	11:13 28:7	41:2	41:22	departing	distance	effective
10:16 13:8	45:14	53:9,10	contention	cruelty	49:6	17:11	45:9
13:17 14:2	children's	comply 11:3	44:16	41:18,18	department	21:23	egress 16:17
14:12	43:22	11:10	contiguous	41:22	12:9,10,23	26:18	21:4 25:22
15:24	CHRISTO...	29:17	17:3 21:15	45:15	12:23	Division	eight 41:17
17:20	2:3	Comprehe...	26:12	CStore	41:16	16:1 23:16	41:21
18:11,22	church	28:23	continues	18:14 19:1	deplorable	25:4 29:10	45:14
20:8 22:7	17:12	comprised	29:17	20:4 22:4	43:4	33:23 34:4	either 24:22
22:24	21:23	19:16,17	continuing	current	described	34:15,17	46:3,6
23:11 25:1	26:19	Compulsive	16:7 25:10	11:17 12:3	43:3	34:21,24	50:13
27:2,17	citizens	28:13,17	contracted	<u>D</u>	description	35:1 38:7	eligible
28:2,9	28:21	28:24	15:5 16:17		11:22	41:2 42:22	45:18
29:23 30:6	city 49:22	29:11	contractual	Daigle 23:2	desires 44:3	45:20	Elizabeth
31:10	civil 35:4	concrete	53:11	23:18	destroyed	Division's	20:12
32:21,22	37:1 52:7	16:15	contradict	24:23	24:1	42:25	embarrass
33:4,16	52:8 53:11	25:19,21	44:23	26:25	Detective	43:24	49:3
35:25 36:8	clear 45:3	condition	control 1:2,9	daily 7:17	43:1,18	44:21	employee
37:7,21	clearly 42:23	43:4	3:6 28:15	9:16	44:4,9,24	docket 49:4	12:5,8,9
38:4,12	44:1	conduct	30:19	dashes 52:12	determine	49:13	12:22,22
39:7,11,18	clerk 49:5,13	42:24	42:16 45:9	52:16	40:22	doing 14:8	41:5 45:23
40:1,5,11	Club 18:15	44:16	50:1	date 6:17	42:10	14:16,20	46:8 49:9
40:18 46:1	19:2,6	conducted	Controls	7:18 8:9	determined	15:20 17:8	enacted 11:3
46:14,23	20:5 21:21	15:13 16:3	10:10 11:1	8:25	16:10	17:18	enactment
48:12,13	22:6	16:9 19:23	12:2	dates 29:8	20:21	18:15 19:1	28:14
48:21	Code 10:6,9	20:11,20	convenience	day 1:13	25:14 41:3	19:5 20:4	Enforceme...
50:23 51:2	10:23 52:8	24:16 25:5	16:21	26:3 30:18	42:3	21:20 22:5	16:1 23:15
Chairman's	53:11	25:13	convincing	31:8 51:5	develop	23:3,19	25:3 29:10
29:22	collect 13:1	confident	45:4	days 26:3	28:23	24:23	ensure 11:5
chance	collected	49:24	Corne-	35:1	development	26:25	42:13
40:16	6:15,21	conform	44:25	de 24:7	28:16	27:22 29:4	entered
50:13	7:22 8:7	11:6	Cornejo	December	Device 8:19	30:22 31:4	19:18
change 11:2	8:13 9:4	Coniglio	43:2,18	34:9 36:24	8:25 19:19	33:12,20	entertain
11:5,21	college 49:14	2:14 5:2,3	44:4,9,25	decision	24:14	36:4,11	13:12
12:16,20	Colonel 4:22	consider	correct	38:17	devices 8:18	Donna 6:9	17:25
34:24	4:24	30:20	40:24 53:7	40:23	15:7 24:13	Draw 14:17	22:12 27:7
changed	color 43:16	considerat...	correctly	43:25	36:18	15:3,6	30:11
34:1	combined	10:4 14:6	41:3,5	45:21 46:7	direct 44:16	17:4,17	35:14
changes	8:2 44:19	18:13 23:1	42:3 45:6	46:11,20	direction	19:3,19	37:10 46:6
11:14	come 5:12	27:20 33:7	counsel	47:1 48:16	53:6	21:16 22:4	equipped
29:20	comes 40:21	33:10 36:3	34:20	dedication	discourse	23:20	16:19
52:13	comforter	37:24	53:13	49:15	52:12	24:12	established
character	43:20	considered	counts 41:17	defined 52:6	discretion	26:13,24	35:5

41:8	fan 43:13,21	food 43:5	17:17	Glen 15:12	happy 30:4	Hello 4:16	28:20
establishm...	FanDuel	form 12:15	18:12 19:3	Glenn 15:25	35:9 37:5	help 39:24	implement
16:11 17:2	27:23 28:8	12:19 13:3	19:20	23:14 25:3	hard 49:15	49:10	28:23
20:22	29:5 30:22	format 53:9	20:18,23	going 49:3	hard-work...	Hernandez	implement...
21:14	31:5	forth 16:11	22:4,25	Golf 33:11	50:17	2:5 3:8,10	29:3
25:15	Fantasy 9:16	20:23	23:15,21	33:12,20	health 28:20	3:14,18,22	imprisonm...
26:11	favor 35:18	25:17	24:2 25:3	33:21,25	hear 3:3	4:1,5,9,13	41:13,25
36:19	37:14	forward	25:11,17	good 3:2,4	10:15	4:17,21,25	include
ethical 44:17	favorable	5:13	26:24 28:8	6:6,8	hearing 6:2	31:11,13	11:22
Evans 36:7	7:5	found 7:10	28:13,15	10:11,13	13:22 18:6	31:17,21	29:16
36:10	February	17:15 22:2	28:17,22	14:9,12	22:18	31:25 32:4	includes
37:19	36:21	26:22 45:7	28:24 29:9	15:24	27:13 35:6	32:8,12,16	37:1 41:12
evidence	federal 11:4	four 8:1	30:19	18:17,19	35:21 37:3	32:20 47:2	including
38:19 39:9	11:6,10,13	Fox 14:7,8	36:13,25	18:21,22	37:17	47:4,8,12	11:7
39:12,13	12:19,25	14:16,17	41:5 42:5	20:8 23:5	38:18	47:16,20	Incorporat...
40:25	52:6	15:8,20,21	42:16	23:7,9,11	39:14,14	47:24 48:3	23:3 26:25
41:14	fees 6:15,22	17:17,18	44:18,22	25:1 27:24	40:22 41:1	48:7,11	increase
42:20 45:1	7:23 8:8	frame 43:11	45:10,18	28:2,6	41:2,15	high 44:17	6:18,25
45:4	8:14,24	franchise	45:23,25	33:14,16	42:2,25	Historic	7:3,13,14
Excuse 40:1	9:4	8:23 9:4	46:8,10	36:6,8	43:24 44:5	17:14 22:1	7:20 8:3,5
experience	fellow 33:17	Frank 28:5,7	50:1	38:1,4,10	45:1,5,22	26:21	8:11,20,22
49:22	38:5	29:25 30:2	general	42:11	46:7,11,19	Hodges 4:22	9:1
explain	felony 41:19	30:9 33:2	10:12,15	Gottardi	47:1 48:16	4:24	independent
44:13	fifty 21:2	front 44:14	10:18,19	24:9 25:6	53:5	Hoffman's	12:9,23
expressing	25:19	fuel 16:23	13:25	25:9	Hebert 2:3	21:5	indicate
50:3	file 11:24	21:10 26:4	14:11,14	government	3:1,11,12	hold 24:9	52:13,17
extending	filing 12:18	26:7	18:20,24	49:23	5:5,22 6:8	41:4 44:18	indicating
50:4	final 22:25	full 7:5	22:22 23:6	grants 42:8	9:21 10:13	44:22	44:8
	35:8 37:4	16:19 21:7	23:10,13	gratitude	10:16 13:8	45:18	indictment
F	37:23	25:23	28:1,4,11	50:3	13:17 14:2	holding 42:4	42:21
F 34:5,6	finally 9:16	full-time	33:15,18	great 51:5	14:12	holds 29:5	industry
facilities 8:1	50:7	49:12	35:23 36:7	greater	17:20	33:22	16:8 20:19
21:11 26:4	find 16:5	furniture	36:10	11:18,23	18:11,22	36:13	25:12
facility	20:16 25:9	43:5	37:19 38:3	12:7,12	20:8 22:7	home 33:5	45:25
14:19,23	finding	further 44:9	38:6 39:6	gross 6:13	22:24	43:2,3	46:10
14:25 15:8	45:24 46:9	Furtherm...	39:25	6:16 7:11	23:11 27:2	honesty	inflation
15:13	findings	45:11	40:20 42:7	7:18 8:2,9	27:17 28:2	42:11	11:8
16:13,19	15:16	future 11:7	48:19 50:9	9:17	28:9 29:23	honor 30:3	information
16:20 17:7	19:25	11:10,13	General's	ground 43:8	30:6 31:10	honorable	7:4 8:16
19:7,10,22	24:19		13:10	guidelines	32:21,22	45:21	12:13 13:1
20:24	first 14:5	G	22:11 27:6	53:9	33:4,16	hours 26:2	16:6 17:15
21:19	33:9 43:6	gambling	30:8 50:15	Gutierrez	35:25 36:8	House 1:12	20:17 22:2
23:22 24:1	fiscal 6:16	27:21	generated	15:9,10	37:7,21	36:5,12	25:9 26:22
25:16,23	6:19,22	29:11	6:13 7:11	16:4,5	38:4,12	Hugh 20:12	ingress
26:16	7:19,21,23	30:24 31:5	8:2	H	39:7,11,18	Hurricane	16:16 21:4
failed 34:14	8:10,12,14	32:25	gentlemen	Hamilton-...	40:1,5,11	23:25	25:22
34:16	8:25 9:2,5	gaming 1:2,9	5:9	2:11 4:10	40:18 46:1	I	inspected
36:20,22	five 19:16	3:6 6:10	Ginn 50:10	4:11 22:14	46:14,23	identify 14:9	15:12
45:4	Fleur 24:7	7:9,11	girl's 43:14	32:9,10	48:12,13	27:24 38:2	19:22
failure 34:23	24:11	8:15,17	Gits 10:12	47:25 48:1	48:21	50:23 51:2	24:15
34:25	floor 43:6,13	12:5,8,22	10:18,20	handle 21:6	50:23 51:2	held 17:8	inspection
36:16	following	14:5,18	13:25	happened	21:19 34:5	19:9	16:9 17:1
fall 42:23	15:17 20:1	15:4,6,7	18:20,24	39:13	34:7	imperative	20:20
family 49:8	24:20 31:2	16:1,8,12	22:22				25:13

inspections	item 5:11,15	Judge 13:18	47:13,14	19:16,20	44:20	meet 25:21	7:17
21:14	6:4 10:2	37:13	last-licensed	20:4 21:20	magnitude	41:22	minutes 5:15
institute	10:21	July 6:25	17:6 21:18	22:5 24:7	35:6	meeting 1:3	5:18 6:3
13:6,13	13:14 14:4	8:21	26:15	27:22 29:4	maintain	1:9 3:5	MLMWBM
instituted	14:6 18:12	June 49:5	laundry	30:21 31:4	11:12	5:19 30:20	36:4,11
13:24	22:25	justificatio...	16:20 21:7	33:11 34:1	36:21,23	38:20	MO 19:14
institution	27:18,19	45:13	25:23	34:10 36:4	maintains	48:23	19:16
10:4	33:7,9	juvenile	Laura 23:25	36:11	12:20	meets 16:11	mobile 9:11
integrity	36:3 37:23	41:18,19	law 11:4,4	LLP 14:20	maintenance	16:16	moment
42:12	IV 6:4	41:22 44:6	16:12	15:1 17:8	16:18	25:15	48:24
interaction		44:11,13	20:23	located	Major 2:15	41:10	momentari...
52:11	J	45:15	25:17	14:19 15:7	4:23,24	member	24:19
Interactive	J 24:9		36:25	19:4,11	manager	24:8 34:7	Momenza...
27:22 29:4	jackpot 11:5	K	laws 29:18	23:23	25:8 28:7	34:11	20:15,16
30:21 31:4	11:18,22	K 1:10 52:4	leased 14:24	location	50:9	48:25	month 7:6
interest	12:5,6,11	52:24 53:3	left 52:18	14:23 15:4	managing	members 5:7	7:13,15
19:14,15	Jackson 2:6	53:24	legally 45:17	17:6 19:8	34:7	5:16 6:9	8:5,6
24:10 34:6	3:19,20	Kelli 20:15	Legislature	21:18	March 14:23	9:22 10:14	month's 7:2
34:8,12,13	5:20,23	Kenner	28:12	23:25 24:6	15:1 19:8	13:9 14:13	months
34:16	6:6,7,9	41:16	letter 38:25	24:13	34:2	15:8,25	11:20 17:5
42:14 45:8	9:23,25	KGT 34:9	39:22 40:8	26:15	market 6:24	17:22	21:17
interested	23:6,10,13	34:10	Lewis 2:7	locations	markings	18:23	26:14
53:13	30:14	Kim 50:10	4:2,3 18:2	8:18	44:7	19:13,16	moral 44:17
Internal	31:18,19	50:10	32:5,6	Lorraine	Mary 14:20	19:17 20:9	morning 3:2
10:10 11:1	37:25 38:8	know 39:20	35:16	25:7	material	22:9 23:12	3:4 5:8 6:6
12:2	38:9,11,21	40:7 50:16	47:17,18	Louisiana	52:20	25:2 27:4	6:8 10:11
interviewed	38:23	known 34:10	library	1:1,2,9,11	matter 10:20	28:3 30:7	10:13 14:9
44:10	39:16,21	Kym 25:8	17:13	1:12,13	14:15	33:6,17	14:12
investigati...	40:7,9,14		21:24	3:5 6:10	18:25	35:12 36:9	15:16,24
15:14 16:4	44:21,23	L	26:20	10:6,8,22	22:11	37:8,23	18:17,19
19:23	46:3,12,15	L'Auberge	license 14:18	20:10	23:17 27:6	38:5 46:2	18:21,22
20:12	46:17,24	50:10	15:4,22	23:15	33:19	48:22 50:2	19:25 20:8
Investigator	47:9,10	L.M 23:2,18	17:5,17	28:12,14	34:19 35:3	50:19	23:5,7,9
15:12,23	50:21,24	24:23	19:3 20:6	28:18,22	36:10 38:8	membership	23:11,17
15:25 18:9	50:25	26:24	21:16 22:4	29:9,10	40:21 42:7	24:10	25:1 27:24
18:18	Jackson's	lack 43:5	23:21 24:2	30:19,25	53:14	34:12,13	28:2,6
19:21 20:7	40:23 45:7	ladies 5:9	24:14	31:8 41:7	Matthew	men 16:21	33:14,16
20:9 22:20	45:23 46:8	38:13	26:13,24	41:10,23	20:13	21:9 25:24	36:6,8
23:8,14	jail 39:4	Landry 2:4	36:14	42:8,17	mattress	met 20:22	38:1,4,10
24:15,25	January	17:8 18:18	Licensee	45:8 52:5	43:12	method	motion 5:17
25:2 27:15	24:4	19:21 20:7	36:16,20	52:8 53:4	mattresses	52:15 53:5	6:2 13:6
44:25	JAROD	20:10	licensees	53:11	43:15	million 6:18	13:12,22
Investments	2:14	22:20	28:22	Louisiana's	McCoy 28:1	6:18,21	15:18
19:13,15	Jarrodd 5:3	30:16,17	licenses	46:10	28:4,11	7:1,3,13	17:25 20:2
involving	Jasmine	Landry's	16:24	lounge 21:8	33:15,18	7:14,19,20	22:12
11:17	49:1,2,4,8	14:20,21	21:12 26:9	Lucky 23:4	35:23 38:3	7:22 8:4,5	24:21 27:7
Ismael 43:1	49:17,24	15:1 17:9	lieu 34:19	23:19	38:6 39:6	8:8,10,11	30:11 31:1
issuance	50:4	lanes 16:15	Lis 24:7,11	24:24 27:1	39:25	8:13,22,24	32:24
17:16 22:3	Jasmine's	21:3 25:20	little 49:3		40:19,20	9:1,1,4,9	35:14,21
26:23	49:20	Langley	LLC 14:8,16	M	46:4 48:19	9:10,12,13	37:10,17
issue 30:21	Jerry 25:8	2:13 3:23	15:6,9,20	ma'am 40:6	mean 38:24	9:14	46:6,13,18
Issues 14:5	John 24:8	3:24 22:15	18:15 19:1	maggots	meaning	minimal	46:22
18:13 23:1	25:6	30:13	19:5,12,13	43:9	45:17	43:4	48:15
27:19	join 50:3	31:22,23	19:14,15	magnifies	means 38:16	minimum	50:20

move 5:14	Number	40:13,19	ownership	permanent	21:24	12:15 13:3	28:18 29:8
8:15 14:4	10:21	46:5,16,24	33:24	21:10 26:3	26:19	prepared	29:16,17
27:18	37:25	48:22		permit 29:7	please 3:8	29:21 53:6	30:24 31:6
moved 5:21		on-going	P	33:22 34:3	14:9 27:24	53:8	33:1
5:23 13:16	O	39:5	P040065896	36:17,17	30:15	present 7:24	programs
13:18 18:2	O 20:13	on-site 16:9	37:25	36:21,23	31:11 38:1	9:6 15:15	28:24 29:1
22:14 27:9	object 39:8	20:20 21:6	page 6:23	40:23 41:5	47:2,3	19:24	39:23
30:13	40:2	25:13 26:2	7:10 52:1	41:6 42:5	49:2 50:2	presentation	prohibition
35:16	observed	26:7	53:3	44:18,23	pleased	15:17 20:1	53:11
37:12	43:2,19	one-mile	paid 9:14	45:18,23	49:19	24:20	proper
46:24	44:6	17:11	paper 43:7	46:8	pleasure	presented	52:15
50:22,24	obtain 34:14	21:23	parish 14:20	permits	29:19	40:25	Properties2
movements	obtained	26:18	19:5 23:23	16:24	Pointe 19:4	41:15 45:1	18:14 19:1
44:13	12:13	open 43:16	49:22	21:12 26:9	Poker 14:17	pretty 40:16	20:4 22:5
moving 6:4	occupation...	operate 15:6	park 20:25	permitted	15:3,7	previous 8:4	property
10:2 33:6	36:17,23	24:12	parking	12:5,8,21	17:5,17	previously	14:24 19:9
	October	operated	16:13	Permittee	19:3,19	14:22 19:6	24:16
N	49:7	14:22 19:7	20:25	29:15,15	21:16 22:4	23:24 29:1	proposed
names 52:19	offense 41:9	23:24	25:18	34:2,6,8	23:20	prior 12:14	11:2,9,21
National	41:24	operating	part 10:23	34:11,14	24:13	13:2 29:2	12:16,20
17:14	offenses	6:12 26:2	28:19	34:20 35:2	26:13,24	34:14	29:12 33:8
21:25	41:12	34:9,10	42:19	38:10 39:9	36:13,18	prioritizati...	33:10 36:2
26:21	office 13:11	36:18	participate	40:2 41:4	Police 6:10	44:2	36:3
necessary	17:23	38:15	16:7 25:11	41:17 42:3	16:2 17:24	prison 41:20	proscriptive
11:3	22:11 27:6	opinions	45:24 46:9	42:13,18	20:10	private	11:20,25
need 11:11	29:9 30:9	53:12	participati...	44:10 45:2	22:10	16:20 21:9	prove 45:3
15:18 20:2	39:14	opposition	20:18	Permittee's	23:15 25:4	25:24	provide 26:7
24:21	50:15	6:1 13:21	parties 35:2	34:23,25	27:5 29:9	privilege	provided
needed 13:7	officer 35:6	18:5 22:17	53:13	41:21	41:16	48:24	29:6 44:24
Nelson 5:1,4	37:3 41:3	27:12	partner	42:23 43:2	50:16	problem	provides
33:11,12	42:2 43:1	35:20	34:20	43:18 44:1	Poole 2:9 4:6	27:20	11:16
33:19,21	44:6 45:5	37:16	passed 28:13	45:12	4:7 5:24	28:24	28:19
33:25 34:5	45:22	order 3:5	pauses 52:13	person 41:8	27:10 32:1	30:24 31:5	provisions
34:7	48:16 52:6	original	payments	41:24	32:2 46:21	32:25	42:5
net 8:18,25	53:4	14:15 15:2	7:17	42:11	46:25	problems	public 5:10
9:9,13,18	Officer's	15:19	payout 11:5	44:22	47:21,22	38:25	11:4 17:12
new 7:9	40:22	18:25 20:3	11:18,23	personal	pose 42:13	procedure	21:24
38:19 39:9	43:25 46:7	23:17 24:5	12:10,14	48:24 53:6	45:7	10:21 52:7	26:20
39:12 40:3	46:11,19	53:2,3	12:24 13:2	persons	position	52:8 53:11	30:20
newly 11:3	47:1	Orleans 7:10	payouts 11:6	15:15	44:21	procedures	42:14 45:8
Nicholas	Officers	outcome	12:24	24:18	positive	10:5 13:7	punishable
20:14	39:15	53:14	penalty 10:8	phonetically	49:11	13:13,23	41:13,19
Non-Gami...	Oh 46:18	Outdoor	10:25	52:21	posted 16:25	proceed	41:25,25
33:22 34:3	Oil 23:2,18	33:13,21	11:16,19	phrase 52:21	21:13	28:10	purchase
Non-Key	24:23	outstanding	11:24 35:4	phrases	26:10	proceeding	34:12
41:4 45:23	26:25	49:8	37:2	52:17	posture	52:12,16	purchased
46:8	okay 3:2,3	overall 6:25	pending 41:9	pillows	11:17 12:3	proceeds	19:9
note 38:24	5:6 9:24	overseeing	41:21	43:17,20	Pour 36:5,12	9:10,13	purpose
noticed	17:21 22:8	28:8	45:15	Placement	preclude	process 24:3	42:12
30:20	23:22 24:4	owner 15:10	people 19:24	19:19	16:6 17:16	professional	pursuant
notification	29:24	15:11	performing	platform	20:17 22:3	15:5 49:9	28:14
33:24	30:10 33:6	24:14	12:10,24	29:6	25:10	50:12,17	30:24
notify 34:17	38:13 39:7	owner-ope...	period 5:10	playground	26:23	program	pursuing
34:23,25	39:15,17	26:1	11:20,25	17:12	preparation	27:21	49:14

Q	record 14:10	11:6 12:25	9:13	53:12	settlement	13:2	42:8,17
qualified	27:25	53:5	retail 9:8	Ryan 15:10	33:10,19	Slots 7:25	53:9
16:12 17:7	30:16 38:2	reports 6:5	retirement	16:5	34:22,22	10:10 11:1	statutorily
20:24	38:17	represent	50:9,18		35:7,15,22	12:2	42:4
21:18	52:10	7:2,12	revenue 6:5	S	36:4,11,15	sole 24:7	stenotype
25:16	reference	request	6:23 7:12	S 25:8	37:1,3,11	34:11 45:2	53:5
26:16	52:20	30:23	8:19,25	safe 33:5	37:18	sorry 24:11	Steven 14:14
question	reflects 35:4	requested	9:7,18	safety 28:20	settlements	24:11	stop 14:7,19
9:23	regarding	29:7	revenues 7:2	sale 26:6	33:8 36:2	46:18	14:21,22
questions	10:7 38:8	requests	7:12,24	Saloon 36:5	sewage 43:5	Specifically	14:25 15:8
9:20 13:5	regardless	45:20	9:17	36:12	Shanaquoa	36:20	15:13,22
13:10	45:11	required	reverse	Sam 44:25	49:21,21	spelled 52:21	16:13 17:7
17:23	regional	11:24	46:11	scabbed 44:8	50:5	spontaneous	17:9 18:1
22:10 27:5	6:24	12:18	reviewed	Schedule	Sharon 28:4	52:12	18:14 19:4
30:4,8	Registry	16:24	29:12	10:8,25	33:18 38:6	sportbooks	19:7,10,22
35:10,13	17:14 22:1	21:12 26:9	reviewing	11:16	sheets 43:17	9:8	20:6,24
37:6,9	26:21	44:18 53:3	29:13	school 17:11	Sholes 2:10	sports 9:9,12	21:19
46:3	regulation	53:9	Revised	21:23	4:14,15	9:16 27:19	22:13 23:2
Quintele	42:15 45:9	requirement	28:18	26:19	13:15,18	29:6	23:22,24
23:13	related	12:21 13:1	30:25 41:7	seal 53:3	32:13,14	sportsbook	25:16 26:1
quorum 5:6	53:13	requireme...	41:11,23	second 46:15	37:13 48:4	9:7 27:23	26:7,16
	relating	11:7,11	42:8,17	46:22 51:1	48:5	29:5	27:8
	42:20	16:16	revoke 40:23	seconded	showed 34:4	Sportsboo...	storage
R 20:14 24:8	relationshi...	25:22	revoked 41:6	5:23 13:18	41:15	30:22 31:5	16:23
25:6	53:11	29:18	revoking	18:2 22:15	showers	sportsbooks	21:10 26:4
racetrack	relocates	requires	45:22 46:7	27:9 30:13	16:20 21:9	9:11	26:5
8:1	49:7	12:3,11	Richard	31:1 35:16	25:24	St 14:20	store 16:22
Racetracks	remain	42:18	15:9 16:4	37:12	shows 6:23	stand 49:2	25:25
7:25	11:25 13:3	requiring	right 3:3	46:25 51:3	signature	standards	striking
Raetzsch	remind	12:25	23:13	Secretary	29:22 53:2	44:17	44:11
20:12,13	38:14	residence	ripped 43:16	5:1,3	signed 31:7	state 1:1,11	strong 49:25
20:13,14	remised 50:7	17:13	rise 36:25	Section 6:11	35:6	1:12 6:10	strongly
20:14,15	renew 36:16	21:25	riverboat	10:24,25	significant	6:14,20	43:23
reached	renovated	26:20 43:6	6:23	seeing 5:14	42:9	7:16,22	struck 44:14
34:21	24:6	43:10	riverboats	9:24 30:10	significantly	8:7,8,13	structure
read 30:15	repair 26:7	resolution	6:13	seeking	24:1	9:3,11,15	33:25
reading 5:17	repairs	29:20	roll 3:9	34:21	Silver 14:7,8	16:2 17:23	34:24
reasoning	16:18 21:7	30:12,15	31:12 47:3	sells 16:22	14:16,17	20:10	structured
39:3	replace	31:2 32:24	room 1:13	Senior 28:7	15:8,20,21	22:10	11:9
reasons	12:16	resolved	43:19	sent 40:12	17:17,18	23:15 25:4	structures
45:19	report 10:1	31:3	Rouge 1:13	September	similar	27:5 28:21	14:25
rebuilding	15:16	respectfully	31:7 50:10	1:3,14 3:6	12:19	29:9 42:15	studies 49:15
24:3	19:25	39:8 40:2	rule 11:2,4,9	30:18 31:8	simple 45:16	49:23	subject
receipt 40:8	24:18	45:20	11:15 12:2	served 49:4	sink 43:8	50:15 52:5	17:10
Receipts	reported	responsibil...	12:11	service	sir 27:16	52:10 53:4	21:21
6:14,16	53:5	49:13	17:10	16:18,20	40:10,15	state-wide	26:17
7:18 8:3,9	Reporter	Responsible	21:22	21:6,7	sitting 49:20	28:17	submitted
received	1:11 52:5	28:8	26:17	25:23 26:6	situation	stated 39:22	15:2 17:4
7:16 33:24	52:25 53:4	restaurant	39:15 52:6	49:18 50:5	39:2	44:9	21:16 24:5
recognize	53:25	26:2	rulemaking	services 26:8	situations	states 42:19	26:13 29:2
48:25	Reporter's	restroom	10:3,5,21	set 16:11	39:1	stating 38:25	29:14 34:3
recommen...	52:1,15	43:7	13:6,13,23	20:22	slips 11:18	statute 28:18	subsequent
29:14,16	53:1	result 11:19	rules 28:15	25:16	11:23	30:25 41:7	11:12
	reporting	resulting 9:9	52:7 53:9	settle 35:3	slot 12:13	41:11,23	subsequen...

24:2	television	today's	20:25	53:2	wagers 9:9	21:20 22:6	2001 28:12
substance	21:8	48:23	Truckstops	value 12:12	9:12		2020 34:2
43:8,12	ten 41:20	toilet 43:7	24:7	valued 48:25	waive 5:17	<u>X</u>	2021 14:24
successor	tes 45:13	top 23:20	true 53:6	Vehicles	wall 43:13		15:1
49:20	test 40:3	Total 8:23	truly 49:18	33:11,20	want 30:1	<u>Y</u>	2023 34:9
suggested	testified 43:3	totalling	two 18:8	34:1	warm 50:4	y'all 10:15	49:5
44:12	44:5	6:15	19:13,17	verification	we're 23:16	year 6:17,19	2024 33:23
suitability	testimonial	tractor-tra...	43:15	12:4	week 26:3	6:22 7:15	36:24
15:14 16:3	40:24	16:14 21:2	Type 14:17	verified	weekend 7:6	7:19,21,23	2025 1:3,14
19:23	41:14	25:20	15:3,21	52:19	weight 45:6	8:7,10,12	3:7 5:18
20:11	testimony	training	17:16 19:2	Verrett	welcome	8:14,25	6:20 7:9
42:10 45:3	40:4 44:24	49:24	20:5 22:3	15:12,23	49:20 50:4	9:2,5 24:4	7:22 8:13
suitable	45:6,12	transcribed	23:20	15:25 18:9	welfare	41:14 42:1	8:19 9:3
42:19	52:9 53:4	53:6	24:14	23:8,14	28:21	years 41:20	19:8,18
44:22	thank 5:7	transcript	26:23	24:15,25	well-being		30:18 31:9
Sumbler	9:25 14:1	52:18 53:2	36:13	25:3 27:15	44:3,20	<u>Z</u>	36:22,22
14:11,14	14:3 17:21	53:7,8,9		VI 14:4	went 39:4,23		36:24
summary	18:8,10	transcripti...	<u>U</u>	victim 44:6	wife 25:7,8	<u>0</u>	21 5:18
7:8	22:8,19,21	52:16	unchanged	44:11	Wilcox 19:5		21% 7:14
summons	22:23 27:3	transfer	12:1	victim's	19:12	<u>1</u>	23 36:22
42:21	27:14,16	34:16,18	understan...	44:13	21:20	1 36:13	2325 10:24
Sunday 7:7	29:24 33:3	35:1	53:7	video 8:15	William	1,000 11:19	11:15
supervision	33:5 35:24	travel 16:15	unfortunat...	8:17 14:5	19:21 20:9	1,200 11:18	24 26:2
53:6	36:1 37:20	21:3 25:20	49:6	14:17 15:3	willing 49:10	12:6,7,12	24-'25 6:19
Supplier	37:22	25:25	Uniform	15:6 16:7	Wilson	12:17	7:21 8:12
33:22 34:3	48:18,20	travels 33:5	28:13,17	16:12 17:4	20:13	1,378 8:18	25-'26 6:17
supplies	49:17	Traylor 2:8	unit 43:21	17:16	Wimani	1.5 8:21	6:22 7:19
16:22 21:9	thought	4:18,19	unknown	18:12 19:2	19:20	1.6 8:5	7:23 8:10
25:25	52:14	18:3 32:17	43:12	19:18	Wimani1	1.9 8:4	8:14 9:5
supports	threat 42:14	32:18	unnoticed	20:18,23	19:13,15	10.5 7:20	25,796,776
43:23	45:8	35:17 48:8	49:16	21:16 22:3	window	11 7:22	7:11
surrendered	three 16:23	48:9	unsuitable	22:25	43:20	119-21 11:4	251.8 9:12
24:3	26:4	treatment	41:4,8	23:20 24:2	wish 50:17	12 11:20	26.5 6:18
sworn 52:9	threshold	45:14	42:24	24:12	withholding	14:23	27 19:17
synagogue	12:17	truck 14:6	45:24 46:9	25:11,17	12:19	12,343 8:17	27:27.1
17:12	Thursday	14:19,21	updated	26:13,23	witness 12:4	129.8 9:1	30:25
21:24	3:6	14:22,25	15:14 16:3	36:13,18	42:25	13.6 7:3	27:27.1A
26:19	Tiffany	15:7,13,21	24:16 25:5	VII 27:18	women	1434 52:7	28:19
	37:25 38:8	16:12,13	29:15	VIII 33:7	16:21	53:12	27:28.A 42:8
<u>T</u>	38:11	16:18 17:7	updates	violation	21:10	14th 24:4	27:28.B1
T 20:14	time 5:12,16	17:9 18:1	27:21	11:17,22	25:24	15 6:12 15:1	41:11
take 47:2	16:25	18:13 19:4	29:12,13	violations	words 52:17	35:1	27:28.B1A
48:24	21:13	19:7,10,22	30:23	35:5 36:25	52:19	160,851,747	41:23
taken 1:10	26:10	20:5,24,25	uphold	Virginia	work 49:15	6:14	27:28.B2
52:9 53:4	35:10 37:6	21:6,19	46:13,19	36:10	50:13	17 19:8	41:7
talkovers	39:2,10	22:13 23:1	Utility 33:11	vote 15:18	Wright	18 1:3 3:7	27:28.D
52:14	46:5 49:19	23:22,24	33:20,25	20:2 24:21	49:21	18th 1:13	42:17
tanks 16:23	timely 34:17	25:16 26:1			written	30:18 31:8	2723 10:25
26:5	34:23,25	26:16 27:8	<u>V</u>	<u>W</u>	34:14	19.6 9:8	12:2
tax 12:19	36:16	trucker's	V 10:2	W-2G 11:24	wrote 38:24	19.7 8:24	28 36:22
taxes 9:11,14	Title 10:23	16:22 21:8	valid 16:25	12:15,18	38:24		52:6
9:19	today 5:12	21:8 25:17	21:13	13:3	Wynners	<u>2</u>	28,144,801
team 48:25	10:3 38:19	25:25	26:10	wagering	18:15 19:2	2 6:23	8:3
50:1	50:11	trucking	36:21,23	27:19 29:6	19:6 20:5	2.8 8:11	29% 7:20

3 7:10 10:23	34:5
3,300 9:19	54.4 8:10
3.2 8:22	5A 10:21
3.3 9:10	
30 33:23	<u>6</u>
34:2	6 24:14
30% 19:15	6.2 8:6
30.2 9:13	6.5 7:1 9:14
3000 37:2	6.61 21:15
301 28:15	6.664 17:2
304 28:16	6.9 7:14
306,000 9:10	65,378,438
31 6:20 7:21	8:20
8:12 9:3	67 6:21
36:24	
312 6:18	<u>7</u>
34,583,125	7 9:1 26:3
6:15	7.2 8:4
36 17:5	7.57 26:12
21:17	70% 19:14
26:14	
36.6 7:15	<u>8</u>
372,000 9:18	8 34:9
39 9:4	8.3 8:13
<u>4</u>	<u>9</u>
4.3 8:8	9 36:24
4.5 7:13	9% 6:19
41,000 9:19	9.2 7:3
42 10:23	9.8 6:25
42:III.2325	965,000 8:20
10:6	
42:III.2723	
10:9	
47 7:19	
49% 15:11	
34:8	
<u>5</u>	
5 1:13 14:17	
15:3,21	
17:16 19:2	
20:5 22:3	
23:20,20	
26:23	
5,520,548	
7:17	
5.2 8:22	
5.5 8:11	
5.8 9:2	
50 16:14	
50% 24:10	
500 35:3	
51% 15:10	